
OXFORD HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

 

MINUTES 

 

AUGUST 3, 2015 

 

 

The regular monthly meeting of the Oxford Historic District Commission was called to order by the 

chairman, Thomas Costigan, on Monday, August 3, 2015 in the meeting room of the Oxford Community 

Services Building. 

 

Other commission members in attendance were James Deerin, Patricia Ingram, Jennifer Stanley, and 

Suzanne Litty.  Also in attendance was Administrator Cheryl Lewis. 

 

The minutes of the meeting of July 6, 2015 were not available at the time and were deferred until next 

month’s regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

The following building permits were reviewed by the commission: 

 

1. #15-25, Gugy Irving, 102 Truax Street, replace roof on house and garage; asphalt now requesting 

standing seam roofing, off-white in color.  Mr. Irving was present to discuss his application.  He 

explained that he needed to replace his roofing, especially the porch area which is already 

leaking.  Recently an air handler was installed in the attic as part of Mr. Irving’s geothermal 

system.  Because the attic is not easily ventilated, Mr. Irving wanted a light colored roof as the 

Department of Energy had determined that “cool roofs protect the environment” and that 

“temperatures are lower by up; to 50 degrees.”  Attachments from the U.S. Department of 

Energy were attached to the permit application for reference.   Mr. Costigan stated that he 

thought a light gray color might be more compatible to the house.  Ms. Litty asked the applicant 

if he might consider a light gray color instead as she believes the white color would be such a 

contrast to the other houses in the area.  Mrs. Stanley pointed out that many of the older 

homes use to have light color roofing but over the years the trend changed towards darker 

colors.  Mr. Deerin stated that his feeling was that the color roof Mr. Irving had picked out was 

not historically representative.  Mrs. Ingram, Mr. Irving’s neighbor, stated she had a direct view 

of Mr. Irving’s house and didn’t have a problem with his request.  Mrs. Stanley made a motion 

that the commission accept the beige color for the roof (bone white-Drexelmetals roofing 

systems).  The motion was seconded by Mr. Deerin and unanimously carried with all in favor.   

 

2. #15-39, William Ritchie, 226 S. Morris Street, repaint outside house.  The applicant was not 

present to discuss the application.  However, Administrator Lewis was available to explain the 

request stating that she had spoken with the owner who had indicated to her that he had 

chipped away at the existing paint to discover the original colors that had been on the house.  

The commission members all agreed that they liked the actual paint samples that the applicant 

had provided.  A motion was made by Mrs. Ingram to accept the colors the owner supplied from 

the Benjamin Moore collection which were PM-11, Essex green, for the doors and shutters, and 

OC-107, antiquity, for the siding.  The motion was seconded by Mrs. Stanley and unanimously 

carried with all in favor. 

 

This concluded the review of building permits. 



Page 2 

Oxford Historic District Commission Minutes 

August 3, 2015 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

 

A consultation was held with David Baker, property owner of 507 E. Strand.  Mr. Baker explained to the 

commission that when he and his wife purchased their house there was a tall privet hedge and wrought 

iron fence running along the side of their property down to the bulkhead.  The hedge was eventually 

taken out and replaced with a picket fence but the wrought iron fence remained.  Mr. Baker stated that 

the wrought iron fence has become a problem over the years in that it was hard to keep clean and that 

paint would no longer stay on it.  The wooden picket fence, however, has held up in this area, and Mr. 

Baker asked the commission if there would be any problem in making a request to remove the metal 

fencing and replacing it with picket fencing to match that which already exists.  The members were all in 

agreement that the request would be acceptable.  Mr. Costigan asked that Mr. Baker complete and 

submit a building permit application with the details. 

 

A second consultation was held with Bruce Beglin who was representing the Oxford Museum.  The 

museum is looking to replace their rear screen door with an aluminum screen storm door.   Mrs. Stanley 

asked if the museum had considered going with a glass storm door or two wooden storm doors.  Mr. 

Beglin responded that because of its unusual size opening whatever the museum decides on would have 

to be custom made.  He added that he was interested in finding out if the commission would approve an 

aluminum storm door.  Mr. Deerin stated that the commission had approved aluminum doors in the 

past.  Ms. Litty added the commission would need to see a photo of what the museum was considering.  

Mr. Costigan echoed Mr. Deerin’s statement adding that though the door was located in the rear of the 

building it could still be seen from the street and perhaps there may be some other options the museum 

could consider such as wood.  Ms. Litty added that she liked the idea of a wooden storm door.  Mr. 

Beglin thanked the commission for their input. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Mr. Costigan asked the commission members if they had given any thought on electing a new chairman.  

Mr. Deerin suggested that Mr. Costigan remain the chairman for the group.  Mrs. Stanley made a motion 

that Mr. Costigan be nominated to continue as the HDC chairman.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 

Deerin and unanimously carried with all in favor. 

 

Mr. Deerin shared with the commission members the information he had received from the training 

seminar he attended held by the MD Association of Historic Commissions regarding demolition by 

neglect.  Mr. Deerin pointed out that the commission currently does not have a provision for this in their 

guidelines.  Administrator Lewis took part in the discussion stating that the town does have a property 

maintenance code.  Mr. Deerin stated that what he was presenting was more specific as it related to 

historic exteriors.  Administrator Lewis responded that the commission should first meet with the town 

attorney in a workshop setting to discuss the matter.  If, after that time, they were still inclined to move 

forward with it, they should either go to the Commissioners and state that this was what they were 

thinking of doing or come up with an ordinance and present it to them.  Mr. Deerin responded that he 

would take the suggested ordinance as put together by the MDAHC and customize it for Oxford to be  

 



Page 3 

Oxford Historic District Commission Minutes 

August 3, 2015 

 

sent up to the Commissioners, Mrs. Lewis, and the town attorney with a note stating that the HDC 

suggests this as something the Commissioners should look at and then set up a workshop for meeting. 

 

The commission revisited their discussion of a town historic plaque.  Administrator Lewis presented 

pictures of possible plaques that the town could order.  Discussion took place as to where the plaque 

and/or plaques could be located.  One suggestion was the circular area located in front of the dock area 

of the ferry so that it would be the first thing one would see if they came off the ferry via the water.  

Another suggestion was to place it in the sidewalk in front of the Oxford Museum.  Two of the members 

expressed their desire to have a plaque in this location.  Administrator Lewis stated she thought the 

plaque should be made of bronze and that she would talk with someone from the museum about having 

the plaque placed in front of their building. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Lisa Willoughby 

Assistant Clerk 

 


